Dana Schrad, Chair Robert Vilchez, Vice Chair Scott Kizner, Secretary Eric English Tyren Frazier William Johnson David Mick

Synethia White



Post Office Box 1110 Richmond, VA 23218-1110 804.588.3903

# COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA Board of Juvenile Justice

### **Meeting Minutes**

June 21, 2023

Virginia Public Safety Training Center, Smyth Hall, 7093 Broad Neck Road, Hanover, VA 23069

**Board Members Present:** Tyren Frazier, William (Will) Johnson, Scott Kizner, David Mick, Dana Schrad, Robert (Tito) Vilchez, and Synethia White

Board Members Absent: Eric English

**Department of Juvenile Justice (Department) Staff:** Ken Bailey, Ken Davis, Katherine Farmer, Mike Favale, Amy Floriano, Wendy Hoffman, Dale Holden, Joyce Holmon, Jerri Jackson, Nikia Jones, Melodie Martin, Ashaki McNeil, Linda McWilliams, Margaret O'Shea (Office of the Attorney General), Kristen Peterson, Lara Todd, James Towey, Robin Binford Weaver, and Rachel Wentworth

**Guests:** Libby Humphries, Office of the Fredericksburg Commonwealth's Attorney, Virginia Association of Commonwealth's Attorneys (VACA)

#### CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS

Chairperson Dana Schrad called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m. Chairperson Schrad welcomed those present and asked for introductions.

#### CONSIDERATION OF BOARD MINUTES

The minutes of the March 22, 2023, Board meeting were provided for approval. On a motion duly made by Scott Kizner and seconded by Tyren Frazier, the Board approved the minutes as presented. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

#### PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

Consideration of Amendments to the Board Bylaws Regarding Vacancies in Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary Positions

James Towey, Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Manager, Department

On page 15 of the Board packet, the Board of Juvenile Justice Bylaws describes the Order of Succession in Absence of Officers. The Department realized last spring when the Board's Secretary resigned that a

system was not set up for when an officer leaves. The language in section 5.01 Officers Elected from the Board stated that the only time of year to elect officers (Chair, Vice-chair, and Secretary) was at the first meeting of the fiscal year, which is in September. The Department became aware there could be a situation where a vacancy could affect the order of succession, and the Board would be without an officer for long periods of time. For example, if an officer resigned from the Board in November, it would take until next September to fill the position.

The Department recommended adding flexible language in article 5, section 5.01 that says the vacancy may be filled at the next meeting unless such vacancy occurs within ten days of the next meeting. This allows the Board packet, including the meeting agenda, to be provided to members ten days before the meeting and posted to Town Hall. If an officer resigns days before the meeting, it could create an issue with having to republish the Board packet and make changes to Town Hall regarding the agenda. The Department added flexibility by using the term "may" twice, so that the vacancy would not need to be filled at any particular meeting. If a vacancy occurs in March and the Board wants to wait until September to fill the vacancy, this can be done; however, the Board need not wait until the September meeting to fill the vacancy.

On motion duly made by Will Johnson and seconded by Tyren Frazier, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the proposed amendments to Article 5, section 5.01 of the State Board of Juvenile Justice Bylaws, last revised on September 21, 2022, including any additional amendments adopted to said Bylaws at the June 21, 2023, Board meeting. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Because the motion took effect immediately, the Board decided to elect a Secretary from among the majority membership present. Chairperson Schrad nominated Scott Kizner to serve as Secretary, and all Board members present agreed.

On motion duly made by Dana Schrad and seconded by David Mick, Board Member Scott Kizner was elected as Secretary for the State Board of Juvenile Justice. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Mr. Towey noted that the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Council developed a model policy to be adopted by state agencies to have full virtual meetings. In addition, there are options for individual members who are unable to attend meetings in person. Mr. Towey will present this policy to the Board at their September meeting for consideration.

Chairperson Schrad said these types of hybrid meetings are helpful for members who travel long distances.

## Request Approval to Begin the Guidance Document Process on the Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act (VJCCCA) Manual

Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department

This manual is a guidance document that provides services to youth through VJCCCA. In 2018, the General Assembly enacted legislation requiring guidance documents be published in the Virginia Register and go through a 30-day public comment period. For purposes of the statute, a guidance document is described as any document developed by a state agency or staff that provides information or guidance of general applicability to the staff or public to interpret or implement statutes or the agency rules or

regulations, excluding agency minutes or documents that pertain only to the internal management of agencies. The VJCCCA Manual meets this definition and, therefore, needs to undergo this process of being published in the Virginia Register and going through the 30-day public comment period. The statute does not mandate that the Board approve, but the Department plans to continue to give the Board an opportunity to approve before publishing the guidance document on Town Hall. This will be considered a public document.

The manual provides guidance on a broad range of topics for those providing services through VJCCCA, which are listed on page 19 of the Board packet. It covers allowable and prohibited programs and services, state funding information as well as other funding sources, and maintenance of effort requirements. Also included is information on VJCCCA plan development, plan review and approval, plan management and reporting, program evaluation, technical assistance, and monitoring.

The Department requested the Board's approval for the Department to publish the VJCCCA Manual in the Virginia Register and complete the 30-day public comment period. The manual has not been updated for ten years.

On motion duly made by Tyren Frazier and seconded by Will Johnson, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the publication in the Virginia Register of the VJCCCA Manual guidance document, and a subsequent invitation for public comment, submitted in accordance with section 2.2-4002.1 of the Code of Virginia. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

#### Consideration of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 VJCCCA Plans

Katherine Farmer, VJCCCA Supervisor, Department

The General Assembly enacted the VJCCCA in 1995 to establish a community-based system of services that corresponded to the severity of offense and treatment needs. Originally, this was to deter crime by providing immediate effective punishment that emphasizes accountability of the juvenile offender for his or her actions as well as to reduce the pattern of offending. It is based on Code section 16.1-309.2, which enables localities to develop and implement their own plans based on data.

The Code emphasizes funding for detention alternatives, as well as front-end programming to address diversion, prevention, and early intervention needs. This funding source is only available to courts and localities, and is primarily a funding source for diversion to pre-court services. This may be the only funding source that those youth have.

Under the legislation, state and local dollars were combined to fund community-based programs for youth. Since 1996, state funding has been allocated to localities through a formula based on factors such as the number of types of offenses and arrests. Some localities are required to contribute a maintenance of effort (MOE), but not every locality has an MOE. The MOE is a match to the grant of the state allocation. The MOE originally required the locality to expend the same amount it did in FY 1995 to receive state funding. As of July 1, 2011, a locality can reduce its MOE to an amount equal to the state funds. Last year in September, a motion was approved for Richmond to lower their MOE to match their state allocation. Currently, every locality has opted to reduce their MOE.

The current state allocation is approximately \$10.4 million and the total annual budget that includes the MOE and additional local funds is approximately \$20 million.

Participation in the VJCCCA funding is voluntary; however, all 133 localities in Virginia participate. There are 76 plans with some localities opting to participate by combining their money to have a combined plan.

Pages 69-72 of the Board packet, break down the localities' state allocation and required MOE. The state allocation is provided by the General Assembly, and that money has not been reduced for several years.

For the locality to participate in VJCCCA and receive funding, they are required to develop a biennial plan for utilization of the funds. VJCCCA staff from the Department provide technical assistance and help guide localities to use the data on current trends to decide which programs and services should be included in their plan. Every year, program evaluation reports are completed by the localities using data from the Data Resource Guide to help guide them toward decisions, planning programs, and services that will meet the needs of the community.

Per the Code, there are certain individuals who must be included in the plan development and who must provide a letter of support for the plan. These individuals are the judges, the court service unit directors, and the Community Policy Management Team (CPMT) Chair. The Department also encourages each locality to develop a collaborative team so that the communities are working together to develop a good local plan to meet their communities' needs.

Prior to FY 22, all the funding was for intake on complaints or court order petitions alleging that a juvenile is a child in need of services, a child in need of supervision, or a delinquent based on Code section 16.1.309.2. However, in 2020the General Assembly amended the Code to allow for prevention services. Localities do not have to participate in prevention services, and there is no additional money provided. The revised Code specified that an assessment of needs be conducted in order for youth to receive prevention services, and the VJCCCA staff researched good evidence-based assessment tools that could be used.

A list of allowable services is located on pages 75-83 of the Board packet. This list provides considerably more detail than was provided to the Board last year and now shows clear, concise definitions, examples, and different target populations, as well as how services could be used and what guidelines are available. These allowable services can help the locality develop their plans.

In FY 22, 4,401 youth were placed in VJCCCA programs for a total of 6,662 placements. Seventy-nine percent of youth placed in VJCCCA programs and services were eligible for detention. On average, there were 1.5 placements per youth, since each youth could go into multiple placements during the year. Sixty-eight percent of placements were pre-dispositional and non-residential, while 29% of the placements were post-dispositional and non-residential. The majority of funding is used for the pre-dispositional youth and detention alternatives. Eight percent of the placements were residential, and 72% were pre-dispositional and most likely detention alternatives.

Page 67 of the Board packet includes a three-year comparison of service categories for utilization. The utilization decreased mainly due to the pandemic, but in the current fiscal year referrals and placements have risen, returning to pre-pandemic trends.

Chairperson Schrad said the Virginia Association of Chiefs of Police partnered with the Virginia Hospital Healthcare Association and the Virginia Organized Interfaith Community Engagement last year and was successful in getting government focused on health services. The group is now focused on mental health and other services for youth. The group has coordinated an event in Prince William County that the Governor is attending on July 9 to showcase the immediate need of mental health services and youth. Chairperson Schrad asked Ms. Farmer for any guidance in that area.

Ms. Farmer responded that one of the allowable services is clinical services that can help a youth at diversion, at the pre-court stage, or during probation and parole. Localities can also use the agency's regional services if they find a high need in their area. Substance abuse is another area in high demand. Across the state, especially in northern Virginia, there is a difficulty finding service providers to help youth specifically with fentanyl. The VJCCCA staff try to help the locality look at their needs, and if mental health or substance abuse is a need, there could be a possibility to add additional money from the locality for that need. Ms. Farmer visited Prince William County recently, and all their funding is going to the Molinari Shelter, a crisis receiving center. The Department defines prevention differently than other agencies: per Code, prevention means to prevent a youth from becoming court involved. VJCCCA staff are working with localities on prevention for such things as truancy, gang intervention, and anything happening in schools preventing youth from being suspended for vaping or drugs. Some localities do have prevention services so that those youth, while they are suspended from school, can receive additional services.

Chairperson Schrad noted that localities may be trying to find the balance between ensuring crime is addressed while keeping youth out of the criminal justice system through diversion, treatment, or other kinds of service programs.

Board Member Johnson asked about the last time funding was increased?

Ms. Farmer responded that the VJCCCA state allocation was slashed 50% by the General Assembly in 1992 and it has not been increased. If a locality had an MOE, then they reduced it to match their state allocation. Some localities have additional money to support their needs, and some have additional monies to go above and beyond the state and the amount of the MOE.

Board Member Johnson asked why localities are not lobbying the General Assembly directly for increased funding given their sway with the General Assembly, and noted his desire for more of a focused effort to work together to increase the state funding.

Director Floriano reminded the Board that the Regional Services Coordinator model, funded by the closure of the agency's correctional facilities during the transformation, is another funding source. The Department has an internal workgroup focused on looking at services statewide to help localities that do not have access to service providers. This would include possible virtual means statewide for youth that need acute provider care that is not found in their community as well as the pre-release services in detention centers and the juvenile correctional center.

Ms. Farmer noted that during the COVID years, money was returned to the state that was unused. The Department would have liked to use that money to reinvest back into the agency.

Board Member White asked whom the localities choose on their team that is representative of the community.

Ms. Farmer responded that the three mandated representatives include the locality's court service unit director, CPMT chair, and the chief judge. Ms. Farmer also suggested that the community, who should know their children and needs the best, invite the school, mental health, social services, police, and health. Some collaborative teams have agency partners that can discuss issues in their community, while other communities are working to expand and develop their collaborative teams.

Board Member White asked whether at any point in the process the community teams are hearing from impacted families or getting real life testimonials from communities with youth who have gone through the system.

Ms. Farmer responded that it would be great to have a parent voice or a youth at the table. Localities would need to discuss confidentiality, but having that voice at the table would be beneficial.

Board Member White said often we do not understand what a young person has experienced being in the system. Board Member White would like to see people have that opportunity who have previously been involved in the system but who are now adults or parents willing to share their experiences and give feedback. There are a lot of young people in need of services, and although a service provider may be good, it may not be culturally relevant or may not look at the whole young person. Board Member White thinks having the ability to utilize the experiences of young people who have gone through the juvenile justice system will help prevent other young people from becoming involved.

Ms. Farmer agreed and thought it might be helpful to develop a youth and parent survey for after the youth has left the agency's care to get beneficial feedback. The VJCCCA staff ask the service providers to look at barriers and the needs of the youth and place them with the best service. Some localities complete an exit interview as the youth is leaving the VJCCCA service. This is something the community incorporates into their goals, objectives, and outcome measures.

Chairperson Schrad asked Board Member White if she knew of any statewide organization that focused on family members that had children go through the criminal justice system. Board Member White responded RISE for Youth, Hampton Roads Opportunity Foundation which is a community-based organization that works with groups of young people and their parents to help navigate their experiences, not necessarily services.

Chairperson Schrad said that culturally relevant services are what is strived for and are difficult to find.

Ms. Farmer shared with the Board that VJCCCA plans are created on a biennium. The plan development is a living, breathing document and can be revised. There are certain conditions that when a revision occurs, it must come before the Board for approval.

Ms. Farmer presented the motions.

Four localities have submitted VJCCCA plans for the FY 24 biennium that have balanced budgets, have been reviewed by the staff, and are recommended for Board approval for FY 2024 of the biennium 2023-2024. Those four plans are Highland, Lexington Combined (Botetourt, Rockbridge, Buena Vista, Alleghany, Covington), Prince William, and Richmond City. These four plans were only approved for one year of the biennium and are now moving forward with the second year of the biennium.

On motion duly made by Will Johnson and seconded by Scott Kizner, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the VJCCCA plans for Highland, Lexington Combined (includes Botetourt, Buena Vista, Alleghany, Covington), Prince William, and Richmond City for the 2024 fiscal year. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Eight localities chose to revise their VJCCCA plan by adding new programs and services to their plan. These localities have submitted revised VJCCCA plans with a balanced budget for fiscal year 2024. These plans have been reviewed by staff and are recommended for approval by the Board for the 2024 fiscal year of the 2023-24 biennium. Those plans are Accomack Combined (includes Northampton), Danville, Fluvanna, Goochland, Lynchburg, Prince George, Waynesboro Combined (includes Augusta and Staunton), and Norfolk.

Chairperson Schrad asked if the revisions to these plans include an increase and no decreases in services.

Ms. Farmer responded these localities changed their plan by adding at least one new program or service. The exception is Accomack; their plan had a local position providing services, and Accomack no longer has that local position and had to contract out for services. Danville removed the gang intervention and prevention program of their plan because it was being funded locally, which included a program they trained in called Cell Dreamers. Fluvanna and Goochland have plans with specialized program services. This is like an umbrella of services in which they can add any allowable service. They now have specific, individualized plans like detention alternatives, mentoring, substance abuse, and anger management. Lynchburg added gang intervention and anger management; Prince George added law related education; Waynesboro added substance abuse and anger management; and Norfolk added clinical services.

Chairperson Schrad said the three localities, Danville, Lynchburg, and Norfolk are identified as higher crime communities and have been awarded Project Safe Neighborhood funds. Danville is working with the police department and US Attorney's Office on gang issues with their grant. Lynchburg allocated some of their dollars to support gang intervention programs. Ms. Farmer followed up saying Lynchburg is going to hire a local position to provide those gang services, and they will also go through the Gang Resistance Education And Training (GREAT) program.

Board Member White asked if the clinical services in Norfolk are clinical medical services. Ms. Farmer affirmed.

On motion duly made by Will Johnson and seconded by Tyren Frazier, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved VJCCCA plans Accomack Combined (includes Northampton), Danville, Fluvanna, Goochland, Lynchburg, Prince George, Waynesboro Combined (includes Augusta and Staunton), and Norfolk for the 2024 fiscal year. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Three communities were not able to present a new FY 24 plan due to internal barriers that prevented them from completing the plans. These three localities have not met all the proposed plan submission requirements. It is recommended that their current FY 23 plan be carried forward for an additional quarter through September 30, 2023, to allow additional time for proposed plan development and submission. The new plan will be presented at the September Board meeting. Those three localities are Amelia, Nottoway, and Powhatan.

Chairperson Schrad asked if Ms. Farmer felt those localities could accomplish the revisions by that date. Ms. Farmer responded that her staff is working diligently with those three localities to create a stronger and better plan for their communities and hopes to have final plans by that date.

Chairperson Schrad asked if there was a common thread, such as a resource issue that is causing this delay.

Ms. Farmer responded that there are personnel issues and a court service unit director out on leave, so that has been a barrier to moving the plan forward. The VJCCCA Coordinator for that region is working closely with the localities who have a small amount of money, but the VJCCCA staff are trying to find service providers in the community to provide the needed services.

Chairperson Schrad asked if the localities are primarily looking for clinical mental health services.

Ms. Farmer answered that the localities are looking for many different things and may be similar in what they need. They review the Data Resource Guide to identify the top three crimes being committed and the highest risk need area to determine what the community needs. It might mean prevention services.

On motion duly made by Tyren Frazier and seconded by Tito Vilchez, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the FY 2023 plan for Amelia, Nottoway, and Powhatan for one additional quarter through September 30, 2023. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Request Authorization to Advance 6VAC35-180 (Regulation Governing Mental Health Services Transition Plans for Incarcerated Juveniles) to the Proposed Stage of the Standard Regulatory Process Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department

6VAC35-180 Regulations Governing Mental Health Services Transition Plans (MHSTP) for Incarcerated Juveniles looks at mental health services when youth are about to be released and during their time post-release. The request is for the Board to approve the proposed language and move it to the Proposed Stage of the standard regulatory process. The Board is required by statute, section 16.1-293.1 of the Code, to promulgate regulations for the planning and provision of post-release services for certain youth that are identified as having recognized mental health, substance abuse, or other therapeutic treatment needs. The youth targeted include those that are committed to the Department as well as those placed in post-dispositional detention programs. This regulation initially took effect January 1, 2008, and has not been updated. The Department is behind on the statutorily-mandated four-year review. This regulation was reviewed in 2019, and a periodic review report regarding the chapter was issued. That report recommended the chapter be amended to address some inconsistent, obsolete, and ambiguous provisions, to clean up the language, and correct some items that were inaccurate or misleading.

Mr Davis noted that the Board packet has two versions of the regulation, one with the marked-up changes and the other version with clean text for easier reading.

The Board approved the Notice of Intended Regulatory Action (NOIRA) in November 2019, and it took a lengthy time to go through the executive branch review, but this was finally completed in January 2022. The Policy Team has since worked to finalize the language and present it to the Board.

Mr. Davis presented the important highlights from the proposed changes to the regulation.

There are many changes to the definition section. The word "resident" was replaced where it occurred in the regulation with "juvenile" both in the definition section and throughout the chapter. The definition of "juvenile" was updated to include both those youth currently incarcerated and those released. The current version of the regulation uses "resident" and "juvenile" as separate terms. The workgroup felt that it would be cleaner to use a single term that would be inclusive of both populations.

Mr. Davis reminded the Board of the discussion around replacing the term qualified mental health professional (QMHP) with mental health clinician in the Regulations Governing Juvenile Detention Centers (JDC). QMHP is defined in both the Board of Counseling regulations and in the Code, but the workgroup decided that the definition of QMHP was too broad for our purpose. The workgroup recommended this same change the Board approved in the JDC regulation.

Mr Davis clarified that the term, "juvenile," does not include individuals who were sentenced and then released directly from the Department to an adult correctional facility or jail to complete a blended sentence.

Board Member White asked for a rationale for the change and whether the change impacts services?

Mr. Davis answered that the youth would no longer be in a situation under the Department; they would be under the Department of Corrections (DOC), who would be responsible for what happens to them once they enter the adult portion of their sentence.

Section 50 - Interagency memorandum of understanding (MOU). As the regulation stands, it requires an MOU be put in place for each jurisdiction covered by a court service unit or a JDC operating a post-dispositional program. The workgroup raised concerns that some JDCs and court service units either did not fully understand the requirement to do the MOU or encountered delays related to the involvement of the locality's attorney. The workgroup recommended a provision be added to allow jurisdictions not to do the MOU if they certify to using a Family Assessment and Planning team (FAPT), and that is specifically set out in the Code of Virginia. If they are using the FAPT to develop and monitor the MHSTP, then they will certify to that, and that would replace the need for the MOU.

In addition, in the case where MOUs are used, a requirement has been added that those MOUs be reviewed every five years and updated as needed. That is in accordance with the existing practice.

A new section was added to clarify that the facility determines eligibility for MHSTP prior to the facility case review meeting and not at the time of that meeting. The language indicated it happened at the time of the meeting, and the workgroup wanted to make sure clarity was provided.

The workgroup removed a provision in section 180-70 that allowed the facility case review meeting to take place no later than 30 days after the resident's release. The reason for that is that the Code requires the plan to be completed prior to the person's release. There is no option for the Department to hold the meeting and do the plan 30 days after release or at any other point after release. The Department removed this language to make it clear that the plan must be done prior to the juvenile's release.

Mr. Davis noted an amendment to the language in section 150 to provide clarity on discontinuing a juvenile's treatment. The treatment can be discontinued if the treatment providers submit written documentation to the probation or parole officer that the juvenile's treatment need has been met. Currently, it is not required to be written. The amendment also added a provision on discontinuation of treatment at the discretion of the probation or parole officer if they determine sufficient progress has not been made or if the service provider is not effective. This gives the Department some discretion not to prolong ineffective treatment unnecessarily.

The workgroup recommended adding a provider self-assessment requirement for MHSTP because currently, there is no mechanism for ensuring compliance with the provisions. This would set out a self-audit process similar to the one all facilities and programs undergo pursuant to the certification regulation. The difference is this self-assessment would not be part of the facility's formal certification audit but would provide a mechanism to ensure the requirements laid out in this chapter are met.

Board Member Kizner asked regarding the discontinuation of services, what happens if the juvenile is not making progress.

The agency's Behavioral Health Unit Director Robin Binford Weaver responded that staff would pivot to something different. If this particular service was identified from the beginning to help the youth, and now it is not working or is not a good fit or match, staff will need to rethink a different service but not leave the youth without services.

If concerns are revealed from the public comment period, the workgroup will review one final time before the regulation comes back before the Board to advance to the Final Stage. This is not the last opportunity.

Board Member Schrad asked based on Town Hall scheduling, whether public comment will be closed by the September Board meeting. Mr. Davis answered he thought that might be aggressive. There is a lengthy amount of paperwork to be completed prior to the submission to Town Hall and then it goes through the executive branch review process before it gets to publication and public comment. Mr. Davis estimated the regulation will probably be in executive branch review by the September meeting but that it will not have been opened to public comment yet.

Board Member Johnson had a concern with section 150: the continuation of services does not seem evident. Mr. Davis said he would look at the wording.

Some of the Board Members were concerned with the public not being informed or have the wherewithal to know to review the product on Town Hall.

Mr. Davis responded that the Town Hall process is automatic. Once the executive branch review is completed, the Department will submit for publication in the Virginia Register and, at that point, a system notification is delivered to those individuals who signed up in Town Hall. This notification will say that a regulatory action is out for public comment. The Policy Team can make the Board aware when this step has been completed. It might take several months until the executive branch review is completed. The Virginia Register has a publication schedule with certain markers that must be made before the regulation is published. So even if the submission were today, it might be a couple weeks before it would be published. The public can sign up for Town Hall notifications. This is the purpose of the Administrative Process Act, to ensure transparency and public involvement.

On motion duly made by Synethia White and seconded by Will Johnson, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the proposed language for the Regulation Governing Mental Health Services Transition Plans for Incarcerated Juveniles (6VAC35-180), including any additional amendments adopted at the June 21, 2023, Board meeting, and grants the Department of Juvenile Justice permission to advance the regulation to the Proposed Stage of the standard regulatory process. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Mr. Davis noted that the full regulatory update is located at the end of the Board packet.

#### Consideration of Board Policies

Kristen Peterson, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department

The Department informed the Board in April 2022 of its intent to conduct a comprehensive review of all Board policies. The Board has reviewed and acted on 12 policies thus far and will discuss three policies at today's meeting.

Ms. Peterson addressed the department's recommendation to amend Board policy 20-001, Treatment Programs and Services. The policy deals with treatment programs and services and directs the Department to provide and make available to residents in direct care mental health treatment and crisis intervention and a range of programs and services to address individual treatment needs. The policy says that the Department must provide a continuum of programs and services for the treatment of committed juvenile sex offenders, residents who have been identified for substance abuse problems, and residents who have been identified with aggression management problems. The policy goes on to require the Department and the Director to develop an internal committee tasked with ensuring these mental health and other services are provided and accessible to all direct care residents and the programs and services are applied consistently across all facilities. There is also a requirement that the internal committee provide oversight and quality control.

The Department recommended a few minor amendments. Page 122 of the Board packet discusses treatment services provided for committed juvenile sex offenders. The Department is asking for a minor revision for purposes of clarity. The current language could be interpreted as saying these treatment programs need only be available to youth committed for a specific sex offense. That is inconsistent with the Department's current practices. Currently, treatment programs are provided to youth who have been assessed as having sex offending behaviors. The Department wanted to clarify that these services and programs are intended to be provided to any youth who exhibits sex offending behaviors, regardless of their committing offense.

Ms. Peterson also discussed the policy's reference to the internal committee. Historically, when the Department had multiple juvenile correctional centers located across the state, there was an internal committee tasked with meeting the requirements set out in this policy. The Department experienced several juvenile correctional center closures in recent years, and currently operates one facility, rendering an internal committee unnecessary. There was a restructuring such that requirements in this policy could be carried with various positions within the facility, and the need for an internal oversight committee diminished. There are now several alternative direct care programs, and it makes sense for the agency to bring back the internal committee to provide a level of oversight, to ensure quality control, and ensure youth are receiving programs and services consistently. The Department plans to re-establish this internal committee.

Chairperson Schrad asked how the Department regards a Board policy, whether it is advisory or considered to have more weight.

Ms. Peterson responded that over the years, the Department has lost sight of Board policies, but the overall objective is to put these policies before the Board and ask for determinations. While Board policies do not have the same force as a regulation, they are enforceable and will take effect immediately. The Policy Team will make sure they are consistent with statutory and regulatory language. Part of this exercise is to eliminate policies that are no longer useful or are obsolete and to bring to light Board policies that have not historically been addressed.

Chairperson Schrad said that was reassuring and did not want to think of it as a paper exercise, but the ability to provide guidance to the Department, especially when there is a lack of clear language either in regulation or law so that the Board can fill that gap.

Board Member White inquired about the frequency of the internal committee's meetings.

Director Floriano responded that the committee has already started meeting and will meet with some regularity. Director Floriano went on to discuss hiring a community placement program (CPP) manager to align all the CPPs and hiring a new deputy director for placement and program implementation to combine service funding streams, service providers, and to enable one point of contact to ensure the services across the state are effective and needed.

On motion duly made by Tyren Frazier and seconded by Tito Vilchez, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the amendment of Board Policy 20-001 (Treatment Programs and Services), as proposed at the June 21, 2023, meeting to take effect immediately. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

Ms. Peterson continued her presentation on the next two Board policies recommended for recission.

04-111, Fees for Psychological Services: This policy currently requires the Director to annually publish the amounts set aside for funds appropriated from the General Appropriation Act to the Department for purposes of providing reimbursement funding for court-ordered psychological evaluations. This is in accordance with section 16.1-275 of the Code of Virginia. The statutory provision currently says that juvenile and circuit courts have the authority to order these various types of psychological and other

evaluations. The language in the statute currently allows the Department to pay for these psychological evaluations in accordance with standards and rates adopted by the Board. The policy uses the language, "in accordance with procedures adopted by the Department." Prior to 2012, the language said that, if provided, this payment/funding had to accord with standards adopted by the Board. Legislation introduced in 2012 as part of an omnibus package introduced by the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security sought to modify some of the powers of the Board of Juvenile Justice and to place some responsibilities that previously were in the Board's hands with the Department. Based on that statutory language, this policy needs to be rescinded.

The Department's practices are not currently consistent with this policy. Historically, the language in the statute provides that these payments need to be made only in the instances in which the parent or guardian is not able to afford to pay for the evaluation. But because of the agency's new Regional Services Coordinator Model, additional funding, and funds saved from the closure of Beaumont Juvenile Correctional Center, the Department has been able to fund services fully for youth who are not indigent. This policy is no longer consistent with current practices, and the Department recommended this Board policy be rescinded.

On motion duly made by Will Johnson and seconded by Scott Kizner, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved the rescission of Board Policy 04-111, Fees for Psychological Services, as proposed at the June 21, 2023, meeting to take effect immediately. All Board members present declared "aye," and the motion carried.

20-105, Graduated Community Reentry: The policy gives the Department the authority to promote activities that would ease residents' transition from a structured setting to a less structured setting, give residents access to services and programs not otherwise available, and provide incentives in the behavior management program. Before this policy was amended in 2008, it contained all of this language but referred specifically to furloughs. The regulatory definition for furlough currently is a temporary short-term authorized absence from the facility for a specific purpose. It is not clear what the policy is speaking to, if not on the temporary absences from the facility without specific permission. Part of the reason the Department is recommending rescission is the need for policies to be clear without confusion. The policy's objective is to allow for programming services and other opportunities that would ease the resident's transition from a structured settings to less structured settings. The Department believes there is nothing in current statute or current regulations that would prohibit this from happening. The Department does not think an additional Board policy is needed, particularly one where the language is vague and does not provide additional guidance. The Department respectfully requested the Board rescind this policy.

Chairperson Schrad asked if the Department felt this policy needed to be replaced with current best practices, or not replaced at all.

Ms. Peterson believes the Board does not need this policy- since its meaning is not clear. The most important part of the policy highlights furlough opportunities for residents to leave the facility. Those opportunities are already permitted by virtue of the current regulation and current statutory language. The policy for graduated community reentry is providing incremental opportunities for residents to be in a less structured setting, so unless the policy has some clear direction on what is meant by that language, then there is no need for this policy.

Board Member Johnson asked if another policy referenced these other statutory opportunities for release for educational purposes. Ms. Peterson responded the policies themselves do not make reference, but the regulations do.

Chairperson Schrad is trying to understand how extensive and expansive Board policies should be; do board policies need to basically support legal and regulatory objectives. It is important the Board stay within their purview but have policies impactful for the Department's direction. If this issue is adequately covered in regulation and law, then yes, it would be redundant.

Board Member Johnson asked if people look to Board policy to educate themselves on what is available. Board policies might be helpful to direct a family member whose family is incarcerated to a program or opportunity. Someone might not find something in regulation or law but could go look at a Board policy. Board Member Johnson is worried that removing any reference from policy regarding opportunities for release in reentry is concerning.

Chairperson Schrad does not want to create a gap in terms of what the Board addresses and the agency's goals. Are the policies adequately addressed on the website?

Ms. Peterson responded that the website does not contain current Board policies.

Board Member White asked whether there is a way to help align the policy with what the Department is doing rather than rescinding it. These are the types of changes as a representative for this Board, that are concerning. The public will get the "abbreviated version and wonder why this has been done, which might bring attention to the Board for something that is not necessary. Board Member White recommended updating the policy rather than rescinding it.

Ms. Peterson offered to modify the language and bring it back before the Board in September. All Board members present agreed.

#### **Director's Certification Actions**

Ken Bailey, Certifications Manager, Department

Mr. Bailey directed the Board to the packet, which contained the individual audit reports and a summary of the Director's certification actions completed on May 9 and April 27, 2023.

Mr. Bailey noted that the audits during this period were great, with six out of the seven audits receiving 100% compliance.

The 1<sup>st</sup> District Court Service Unit received a 100% compliance on their audit with a letter of congratulations, and the Director certified them until April 14, 2026.

The 12<sup>th</sup> District Court Service Unit received a 100% compliance on their audit with a letter of congratulations, and the Director certified them until May 9, 2023.

Mr. Bailey noted that all court service unit audits continue to be conducted virtually, which has proven to be efficient, a good process, and a cost-saving for the agency.

The audit for the 13<sup>th</sup> District Court Service Unit had two areas of non-compliance. A follow-up review of those areas showed significant progress in remedying the problems, and the Director certified them until March 16, 2026. The two areas of non-compliance involved three of seven applicable cases reviewed not having face-to-face visits for at least 90 days. The follow-up review was in relation to probation and parole, and there were no applicable cases to review at that time, but the unit had a reasonable corrective action plan in place to take care of the matter. Additionally, four out of eight applicable cases reviewed did not have a level three or level four case staffing. The follow-up review had two cases and showed the required staffing. The 13<sup>th</sup> District Court Service unit has corrected that issue.

The 29<sup>th</sup> District Court Service Unit received a 100% compliance on their audit with a letter of congratulations, and the Director certified them until September 15, 2026.

The 30<sup>th</sup> District Court Service Unit received a 100% compliance on their audit with a letter of congratulations, and the Director certified them until June 18, 2026

The Crater Juvenile Detention Center received a 100% on their audit with a letter of congratulations, and the Director certified them until May 9, 2026. This was the last audit for Jack Scott, the superintendent who brought the facility back from the verge of shutting down to a level of compliance. This facility is not modern but does a remarkable job. Mr. Bailey hopes Mr. Scott's successor will keep up the great work when Mr. Scott retires.

The Northwestern Regional Juvenile Detention Center and Post-dispositional Program received a 100% compliance on their audit with a letter of congratulations, and the Director certified them until April 14, 2025. Since their last audit, this detention center has signed an agreement with the Department of Homeland Security to hold residents detained by ICE, but only in a temporary placement status and with only one or two ICE residents at a time. The Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) program at Shenandoah Juvenile Detention Center has terminated its contract with the federal government, and ORR no longer operates a program at Shenandoah.

Loudoun County opened their youth services center funded by the locality for \$23 million with no assistance from state money. The building contains a detention center where the locality moved their certified detention program and contains a family resource center. The family resource center helps identify resources. The Certification Unit certifies the RISE Youth Shelter which is part of the complex. On April 27, the Director granted a conditional certification to RISE Youth Shelter effective April 27 to October 26, 2023. Mr. Bailey explained that with a new program, a conditional certification is granted for six months then followed up with a full audit to review how they provide services such as medical, nutrition, and case management. This report will be presented to the Director in October, and she will decide on their continued certification status.

Chairperson Schrad said that Prince William County seems to be making a concerted effort to align services with law enforcement on mental health with the larger criminal justice system pushing juvenile justice to provide these kinds of services. Chairperson Schrad is hoping Prince William County is creating a model that can be replicated in other areas of the state.

Mr. Bailey responded that Prince William has visited Loudoun and is looking at implementing something similar, along with Chesapeake. The Loudoun facility is getting a lot of recognition and interest. The Superintendent advised that Loudoun will be a trauma-informed certified facility, and all staff have trained in dealing with youth going through trauma.

Board Member Vilchez asked how many juvenile detention centers are holding ICE youth, and Mr. Bailey responded Northwestern is the only one.

#### Legislative Update

James Towey, Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Manager, Department

The 2023 General Assembly session was busy for the Department with hundreds of bills being dropped each day. The Department's ten-member legislative team had a daily task of reviewing bills on the impact they might have on the Department, the juvenile justice system, or general crime. The team identified 484 bills relating to juvenile justice or crime that needed tracking to ensure the Department and the Board were aware of the outcome. Because of the composition of the General Assembly, with one party controlling the Senate and another party controlling the House, there were many bills that did not survive crossover. Of the 484 bills, two-thirds failed.

Mr. Towey develops the legislative manual to describe the passed bills, which stands at 160; but there are some bills that do not warrant appearing in the manual, so there will be around 100 bills in the manual. This is lower than in previous years. The manual should be published by June 30 with an online presentation the Board can view. The Governor's Office moved up deadlines for legislative proposals by two months this year which caused some projects to be delayed.

The Department closely followed 15 bills, two-thirds of which passed. Mr. Towey presented highlights of some of the legislation.

Drone (HB2020 / SB 1073) legislation was an agency bill to address a real and ongoing problem. In 2019, the Virginia State Police (VSP) published a report that discussed how drones dropped contraband at correctional facilities and for other purposes. At the beginning of 2022, the Department was contacted by a news station that wanted to take drone footage of the Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center (JCC). Some drones have high resolution cameras that could have zoomed in to focus on identifiable facial features of juveniles. The Department must be able to protect these juveniles' confidentiality. The Department realized it did not have the authority to tell the media outlet they could not fly their drone over the JCC, so the agency politely asked them not to because of privacy concerns. Fortunately, the media outlet agreed and did not fly a drone over the JCC.

The initial drone legislation prohibited the flying of drones over correctional centers and included DOC, DJJ, and criminal jails. The drone lobby is one of the most powerful lobbies in the General Assembly that includes Google, and the agency was met with some opposition. The legislation makes it a Class 1 misdemeanor knowingly and intentionally to cause a drone to drop any items within the boundaries of, or obtain any videographic or still image of any identifiable inmate or resident at, any state or local correctional facility or juvenile correctional center. This will help prevent news stations from obtaining high resolution images of protected juveniles. Increasing technology for obstructing the use of drones, and

drones with protection devices, are issues the agency will look at in the future and seek stronger legislation if needed.

Gangs (HB 1478/SB 1207): One bill that will have an impact on the juvenile justice system as well as the adult system relates to gangs. The bill modifies the gang statute by adding offenses listed in subsection C of 17.1-805 of the Code to the definition of act of violence in the gang statute. As a result, they are included in the definition of predicate criminal act.

The definition of predicate criminal act includes a list of crimes, and as offenses are added, it broadens what can be identified legally as a gang. Part of the definition of a gang involves having members who committed one or more predicate criminal acts, at least one of which is an act of violence. It also increases the breadth of the gang participation statute because that statute makes it a crime if a member of a gang, or someone on behalf of that gang, commits a predicate criminal act. The definition of predicate criminal act carries a lot of weight, so as offenses are added, it expands the whole scope of the statutory sequence of the gang statutes. Examples of the offenses added include: solicitation to commit murder, armed burglary of a bank, discharging firearms in public, felony brandishing and use of machine guns for criminal purpose, and possession or production of child pornography.

That same bill also increased the penalties for criminal street gang participation, which occurs when a gang member commits a predicate criminal act on behalf of a gang. The bill increases the penalty from a Class 5 to Class 4 or 3 felony. The bill makes it a Class 3 felony if it is proven that the gang includes a juvenile member. The bill also increases the penalty for a third or subsequent conviction on criminal street gang crimes from a Class 3 to a Class 2 felony, and the penalty for gang activity in a gang-free zone increased from a Class 5 to a Class 4 felony.

Board Member Kizner wanted to know if this results in a longer length of stay when the penalties become more severe.

Director Floriano responded that the classification of Class 2 through 6 felonies typically depends upon the gravity of the case. The length of stay is a matrix of charges with a risk level, and in addition there is a risk level of the individual child that matches up. Increasing the adult penalty does not automatically increase the length of stay for the youth because the offense itself is still classified by that level of risk and intention of therapeutic rehabilitation. This would increase, more specifically, for things like how long adults spend in prison or for various triggering events. It would not necessarily automatically increase the length of stay of the child because the gang statute is assigned based on tiers of that activity level; look at intent and psychological factors.

Notifications (SB 1264): 16.1-309.1 pertains to exceptions to confidentiality. Confidentiality is important to the Department. The bill will allow the Department or court service unit when a case is diverted to disclose information necessary to enforce a provision of the diversion program to any law enforcement officer, school principal where the juvenile attends school, or the known victim. Also, a court service unit may provide information regarding availability of a protective order and restitution and dispositional information to the victim. Sometimes certain information is not known. For example, Johnny and Suzie go to the same high school, Suzie has a protective order out against Johnny, if the school principal knows this information, they can ensure the protective order is adhered to in order to protect Suzie; otherwise, if the school principal does not know, it could create a dangerous situation. There are some situations

where certain individuals have to know, and this amendment was tailored to those who need to know information to make sure certain things are enforced.

DYPDA (SB 485, 2022): The Delinquency Prevention and Youth Development Act has been in place since 1979 and allows the Department to make grants to counties and cities to promote efficiency and economy in the delivery of youth services and to provide support to localities seeking to respond to juvenile delinquency. The Board adopts policies governing applications for grants and standards for the operation of programs developed and implemented under the grants. A locality participating in a program funded by a grant must set up a youth services citizen board. This board shall cooperate with community representatives in the formation of a comprehensive plan for the development, coordination, and evaluation of the youth services program and shall make recommendations to the governing authority on the plan and its implementation. The Department has sustained 43 such programs since 1979.

The Delinquency Prevention and Youth Development Act was last funded in FY 2001. Even though it calls on the Department to provide grants to localities that want one of these programs, there is no money in the budget. There are a few other amendments made to tweak the statutory sequence. Last year, this bill was accompanied by a budget amendment in the amount of \$3 million. Oddly, the statutory changes to this act passed, but the budget amendment to fund the grants did not. There is a \$2.8 million proposal for grants in the FY 24 budget and another \$200,000 for administration by the Department. Currently, the budget is still being considered.

Mr. Towey will notify the Board when the legislative manual is published, and the Board will receive an invitation to the legislative webinar.

Chairperson Schrad asked if the Length of Stay Guidelines were having any problems in the budget negotiations. Director Floriano said the Guidelines are still in the Senate Finance version of the budget. The Administration and Senator Marsden have come out in support of what the Department is doing.

#### Office of Regulatory Management and Regulatory Reduction

Ken Davis and Kristen Peterson, Regulatory Affair Coordinators, Department

Mr. Davis began the presentation. Preparations have been happening behind the scenes for the past year, and the Department is now ready to present to the Board the new process for reducing regulations.

When a new governor comes into office, they are required by statute to issue a new executive order to lay out how they will approach the regulatory process and how they will enforce those portions of the statute. Governor Youngkin enacted Executive Order 19 issued June 30, 2022, which creates a new Office of Regulatory Management (ORM) that did not exist previously. It requires an enhanced regulatory package that includes an expanded economic analysis for any regulatory action; requires annual submission of a unified regulatory plan; requires a 25% reduction in regulatory requirements; and requires all regulatory activities be posted to Town Hall.

The ORM is responsible for several items, with the primary being providing regulatory review for any new and existing regulations and guidance documents. ORM has been added as a reviewer during the Executive Branch review portion of the regulatory process, joining the Office of the Attorney General, the Secretary's Office, the Department of Planning and Budget (DPB), and the Governor's Office. This is

an additional step. ORM will serve as a focal point for regulatory management, regulatory reduction, and the requirement for an expanded economic evaluation. They will also be involved in permit streamlining, grants distribution, and coordination of multi-state agreements. The Department is most concerned with the regulatory responsibilities.

DPB performs an economic analysis on each regulatory action. ORM believes this needs to be more extensive and is now requiring each agency to perform their own expanded economic analysis for each regulatory action and each step of the process. With the proposed stage of the MHSTP regulations that were discussed at the meeting today, the Department will need to conduct an economic impact analysis. It includes cost benefit analysis, any impact on local partners, economic impacts on families, regulatory impacts on small businesses, and the number of regulatory requirements imposed.

The Board will not "see" this happening but may notice the process slowed down until the agency gets a firm handle on what it takes to complete an economic analysis and get some feedback. The Department has done a few analyses but has not yet received feedback from ORM on whether there are things we need to change or do differently.

The unified regulatory plan requires no action from the Board. Each year by the 1st of July, the Department must submit the unified regulatory plan to ORM. This plan lays out all the regulatory actions that the agency intends to take in the next fiscal year. For instance, the MHSTP regulation discussed at the meeting today will appear on this plan. Once it is submitted to ORM, they have the right to approve it, modify it, or request changes. This was done last year, but things were moving quickly, and the Policy Team was not able to bring the regulatory plan to the Board for review, which was an oversight. The Policy Team was trying to learn the new process. ORM did not request any modifications. The approved plan is posted to Town Hall, but the plan can still be changed when published in Town Hall. If something comes up, and the Department realizes a problem, there is an opportunity to ask ORM if the plan can be modified in order for the agency to take action. The plan will be available to the Board once it has been approved and published in Town Hall. The plan is a working plan or project plan, and there are no consequences if a marker is missed. If the agency sets a deadline for itself in the plan and cannot hit that mark due to an issue, the agency can update those efforts in the following year plan. There are no penalties for the agency or board if those markers are not met. The new plan will be finished and submitted by June 30.

Mr. Davis concluded his remarks, and Ms. Peterson began her presentation.

The agency has embarked on reducing its regulatory footprint in accordance with Executive Order 19. In 2018, the General Assembly established a pilot program and identified two agencies to participate – the Department of Professional and Occupational Regulations (DPOR) and the Department of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS). They were tasked with reducing their regulatory requirements by 25% and had a three-year period to accomplish the reduction. They were supposed to demonstrate this through the development of a baseline regulatory catalog.

Of the two agencies, the DPOR was able to accomplish their goal and exceeded the 25% regulatory reduction requirement. They accomplished a 26% regulatory reduction. But the DCJS did not meet their goal. They were able to reduce 14% of their regulatory requirements. In the reports that were done after the pilot program completed, the DCJS pointed out they were a public safety organization. The ability to reduce their regulatory requirements would not necessarily be dependent upon satisfying a formula. They

had to review the regulatory requirements and decide whether these changes will be in the best interest of the entities regulated by DCJS because this agency is a public safety organization. That created some challenges to comply with that regulatory reduction requirement. The pandemic had some impact on that as well.

Other state agencies, including the Department, were required to develop a baseline regulatory catalog by July 1, 2020. This was a spreadsheet that set out the specific 12 regulatory chapters currently under the Board with individual sections listed. The Policy Team was required to look at the provisions to determine to what extent the provisions constituted a regulatory requirement and then note the count on that specific spreadsheet in the required field. The DPB was required to oversee the entire process, and the Department needed to classify the regulations or the requirements into four categories.

The agency also had documents incorporated by reference (DIBR) into the regulation that needed to be counted and noted on the spreadsheet. The agency submitted this to the DPB, and they published the information and posted it on the Virginia Regulatory Town Hall. All state agencies were asked to complete a 2020 baseline catalog except for those state agencies that are exempt from the process. The statutory provision also required a review of whether agencies were compliant with the periodic review process, which mandates a review of every regulatory chapter at least once every four years. Only 12 agencies were in full compliance with the periodic review requirement; 22 agencies, including DJJ were in partial compliance, and 11 agencies did not comply.

The Department has completed the baseline catalog, but the ORM provided the agency with additional information specifically on how to carry out this reduction. The agency has been asked to update its regulatory counts based on those specific instructions. Those updated counts are due on July 31, 2023.

The 25% reduction is measured as an aggregate of regulatory requirements, not by individual chapters. The agency may have a few regulatory chapters where provisions cannot be deleted because they are needed; but the agency could still accomplish the 25% reduction effort by having more reduction (e.g., 60%) in another chapter. There are some areas the agency will not have leeway to make a lot of regulatory reductions.

The reduction will only include discretionary requirements that bind external entities. The Regulations Governing Juvenile Correctional Centers are imposed on the agency and its staff, thus, there is not much that can be done for reduction in that area because the regulations bind an internal entity, the state agency. The only areas where regulatory reductions will count is with discretionary provisions on the regulated party rather than a state agency.

The Department will need to classify regulatory requirements into four classifications when updating the baseline catalog. If the regulation mirrors a statutory provision or if the statute itself mandates that provision be placed in the regulation, it will not count towards the reduction if that provision is deleted. It is only those provisions that are discretionary for the agency and that bind the regulated party.

Agencies will be able to receive partial credit if they reduce burdens to regulated entities. As an example, the proposed amendments made to the state reimbursement regulation include additional provisions to allow for a streamlined process for those local entities that choose not to seek state reimbursement either now or in the future. Even though this expedited process will create new regulatory requirements, the

agency will receive some partial credit because it is reducing the burden on the regulated community, in this case the localities that are engaging in these construction projects.

ORM has identified target dates for the regulatory reduction to help monitor agency's progress towards reaching the overall 25% goal. By January 5, 2024, the agency must achieve 10% regulatory reduction, another 10% by January 3, 2025, and wrap up at the end of December 2025 with 5%.

The reduction counts only when changes complete the entire regulatory process. These regulatory actions move through the process slowly. The Department will make every effort to move proposed reductions through the process as quickly as possible, but it is going to be difficult to meet the January 5 deadline. Expedited stages with noncontroversial regulations can be done, but again, as an agency there is no control over what happens once the regulation goes into executive branch review. There are some executive branch entities that do not have deadlines on reviews and could take additional time. The Department will do its best and strive to meet the 25% goal.

If the Board wants to view any information such as the 2020 Baseline Catalog, the Unified Regulatory Plan, the updated Baseline Catalog, Executive Order 19, and the Regulatory Reduction Guide issued by ORM, all information is contained on the Virginia Regulatory Town Hall.

Board members expressed their gratitude for Ms. Peterson and Mr. Davis on their professionalism towards this whole difficult process.

#### DIRECTOR REMARKS AND BOARD COMMENTS

Amy M. Floriano, Director

Chairperson Schrad was presented with a resolution for her long and distinguished service on the Board of Juvenile Justice. Director Floriano and the Board wished her well as her term expired.

#### **NEXT MEETING**

The next meeting of the Board will be September 20 at Hanover.

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

Chairperson Schrad adjourned the meeting at 12:15 p.m.